### REVISED

#### **BYLAWS**

**OF** 

## FOOTHILLS GATEWAY, INC.

## **ARTICLE I**

### **Offices**

- 1. <u>Business Offices.</u> The principal office of the corporation shall be at 301 Skyway Drive, Fort Collins, Colorado 80525. The corporation may also have one or more offices at such other place or places within or without the State of Colorado as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine or as the business of the corporation may require.
- 2. <u>Registered Office.</u> The registered office of the corporation shall be as established by the Board of Directors and established with the Colorado Secretary of State.

## **ARTICLE II**

### **Board of Directors**

- 1. <u>General Powers, Election, Tenure and Qualification.</u> The business and affairs of the corporation as originally established were managed by a Board of Directors who were elected by a membership group. By the Second Restated Articles of Incorporation the members and the Board of Directors eliminated corporate membership. The Second Restated Articles of Incorporation set forth at Article Fourth, the names expiring terms of the serving directors as of the date the Second Restated Articles were adopted, successors shall be reappointed by a majority vote of the remaining directors then still serving.
- Performance of Duties. A director of the corporation shall perform his or her 2. duties as a director, including his or her duties as a member of any committee of the board upon which he or she may serve, in good faith, in a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation as required by the Colorado Revised Non-Profit Corporation Act and with such judgment as an ordinary prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. In performing his or her duties, a director shall be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data as allowed by the Colorado Revised Non-Profit Corporation Act. A person who so performs his or her duties shall not have any liability by reason of being or having been a director of the corporation. Those persons on whose information, opinions, reports, and statements a director is entitled to relay are: (a) one or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; (b) counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters which the director reasonably believes to be within such persons' professional or expert competence; or (c) a committee of the board upon which he or she does not serve, duly designated in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of

Incorporation or the Bylaws, as to matters within its designated authority, which committee the director reasonably believes to merit confidence.

- 3. Number. The Board of Directors shall, subject to the limitations set forth in the Articles of Incorporation, consist of the number of members as set by the Board of Directors from time to time. The composition of the Board of Directors shall have a balance of and represent the various communities within Larimer County, Colorado, and will have no less than one (1) individual in services represented on the board. Directors shall be elected for staggered three-year terms and shall serve until their successors shall be elected and qualified. Staff members of the community-centered board and employees or board members of service agencies may not serve on the Board of Directors. A director filling a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of director's position for which that director has been appointed to fill. Directors staggered three year terms shall expire on March 1, of each year, or as soon thereafter as the Director's successor may be qualified.
- 4. <u>Regular Meetings.</u> After each annual election of directors, the Board of Directors shall meet for the purpose of organization, selection of a President, the election of officers, establishing regular meeting dates until the next annual meeting and transaction of any other business. Notice of the time and place of regular meetings shall be posted in a prominent location at the corporation's principal office.

Written minutes of all public board meetings shall be filed as a matter of agency record and shall be available to the public on request. A member of the Board of Directors missing three (3) consecutive meetings without being excused or having taken an approved leave of absence shall be deemed to have resigned from the Board. A member of the Board of Directors that does not attend a minimum of seven (7) meetings per year, unless the board by two-thirds (2/3) vote of all of its members excuses additional absences in unique circumstances, shall be considered a resignation from the Board. Attendance will be monitored using a time frame of annual meeting to annual meeting to establish a yearly attendance record. Board of Director members who have missed two (2) consecutive meetings without being excused or are in jeopardy of not meeting the minimum of seven (7) meetings per year, may be notified via mail by the Secretary of the possibility of an involuntary resignation.

In the event of unusual circumstances, a member of the Board of Directors may request a leave of absence. A leave of absence request must be approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, acting at least fifteen (15) days after a written request from the Board member for a leave of absence has been submitted.

- 5. <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be on two (2) days' notice to each director, sent either personally, by electronic transmission or by telephone, and shall be called by the President or Secretary or any three (3) directors. The purpose of a special meeting of the Board of Directors need not be stated in the notice thereof.
- 6. <u>Place of Meetings.</u> Any meeting of the Board of Directors may be held at such place or places either within or without the State of Colorado as shall from time to time be

determined by the Board of Directors or fixed by the President and designated in the notice of the meeting.

- 7. <u>Public Notice of Meetings.</u> Board meetings must be scheduled after adequate notice and must be open to the public; except that, by vote of a two-thirds majority of members present, the board may elect to address the following matters in executive session:
- a) The purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of any real, personal, or other property interest;
- b) Conferences with an attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions;
  - c) Matters required to be kept confidential by federal or state law or rules;
  - d) Specialized details of security arrangements or investigations;
  - e) Determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations;
  - f) Developing strategy for negotiations and instructing negotiators; and
  - g) Personnel matters.
- 8. Quorum. A majority of the actual number of directors within the limits vested by Article III, Section 3, shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Board of Directors. In the absence of a quorum at any such meeting, a majority of the directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice until a quorum shall be present.
- 9. <u>Voting.</u> Members of the Board of Directors are prohibited from voting on issues in which they have a conflict of interest. If a director is present at a meeting and does not dissent or abstain or the minutes do not reflect that he or she is dissented or abstain from the directors' action, then he or she will be deemed to have voted for any action affirmatively.
- 10 <u>Vacancies.</u> Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors. A director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor in office.
- 11. <u>Compensation of Board of Directors.</u> Directors shall receive no remuneration for services rendered in their capacity as directors of the corporation.
- 12. <u>Audit.</u> An annual audit shall be conducted at the end of the fiscal year of the corporation by an independent firm of Certified Public Accountants.
- 13. Resignation and Removal. Any member of the Board of Directors may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President or Secretary at least fifteen (15) days prior to the monthly meeting, at which point the resignation will be presented to the Board of Directors. Such resignation shall take effect upon receiving notice thereof or at such later time as shall be specified in such notice; and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any director or directors of the corporation may be removed at any time, with or without cause, in the manner provided in the Colorado Non-Profit Corporation Act.

## **ARTICLE III**

## **Executive Committee**

- 1. Appointment. There shall be an executive committee which shall be made up of the President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, immediate past President and Executive Director. The Board of Directors may appoint additional members to the Executive Committee and limit or otherwise establish their terms and authority. The Executive Director shall participate with only an advisory non-voting status. The designation of such committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any member thereof, of any responsibility imposed by law.
- 2. <u>Authority.</u> The Executive Committee, when the Board of Directors is not in session, shall have, and may exercise all of, the authority of the Board of Directors except to the extent, if any, that such authority shall be limited by the Colorado Non-Profit Corporation Act. The Executive Committee specifically shall not have the authority of the Board of Directors in reference to amending the Articles of Incorporation; electing, appointing or removing a director; adopting a plan of merger or consolidation.
- 3. <u>Tenure and Qualifications.</u> Each member of the Executive Committee shall hold office until the next regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors following his or her designation and until his or her successor is designated as a member of the Executive Committee and is elected and qualified.
- 4. <u>Meetings.</u> Regular meetings of the Executive Committee may be held with notice at such time and place as the Executive Committee may fix from time to time by resolution. Special meetings of the Executive Committee may be called by any member thereof upon not less than one (1) days' notice, stating the place, date and hour of the meeting, which notice may be written and communicated electronically or orally. Notice of a meeting may be mailed but, if mailed, such meeting must be called on not less than five (5) days' notice and shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member of the Executive Committee at his or her business address or, when transmitted telephonically, by facsimile to the member. Any member of the Executive Committee may waive notice of any meeting and no notice of any meeting need be given to any member thereof who attends in person. The notice of a meeting of the Executive Committee need not state the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting.
- 5. Quorum. A majority of the members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting thereof, and action of the Executive Committee must be authorized by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present.
- 6. <u>Vacancies.</u> Any vacancy in the Executive Committee may be filled by a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors.
- 7. <u>Resignations and Removal.</u> Any member of the Executive Committee may be removed at any time with or without cause by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors. Any

member of the Executive Committee may resign from the Executive Committee at any time by giving written notice to the President or Secretary of the corporation, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

- 8. <u>Procedure.</u> The Executive Committee shall elect a presiding officer from its members and may fix its own rules of procedure, which shall not be inconsistent with these Bylaws. It shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and report the same to the Board of Directors for its information at the meeting thereof held next after the proceedings shall have been taken.
- 9. Other Committees. Other committees may be formed and vested with authority and members of such committees appointed by a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors. Any committee's authority may be limited or restructured by the Board of Directors at any time.

## **ARTICLE IV**

## **Officers**

- 1. <u>Election and Tenure.</u> The Board of Directors annually shall elect a President, a Vice President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board may also elect or appoint such other officers and assistant officers as may be determined by the Board. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person; except the offices of President and Secretary. Each officer so elected or appointed shall continue in office until his successor shall be elected or appointed and shall qualify, or until resignation, removal, death or other disqualifications.
- 2. <u>Resignation, Removal and Vacancies.</u> Any officers may resign at any time by giving written notice to the President or Secretary or the Board of Directors. Any notice shall be effective when received unless the notice states a later effective date; no acceptance of the same shall be necessary to render the same effective. The Board of Directors may remove any officer at any time with or without cause. If any office becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors. An officer appointed to fill a vacancy shall be appointed for the unexpired term of the predecessor in office.
- 3. <u>President.</u> The President shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall have general and active management of the business of the corporation. He or she shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried into effect and, in general, shall perform all duties as may from time to time be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors.
- 4. <u>Vice President.</u> The Vice President shall perform such duties and possess such powers as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors, or by the President. In the absence or inability of the President, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President.
- 5. <u>Secretary.</u> The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee, and shall attend all such meetings and keep a record of

their proceedings. The Secretary shall be the custodian of the seal of the corporation and shall have power to affix the same to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the corporation is authorized by these Bylaws or by the action of the Board of Directors, and in general, shall perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Secretary by the Board of Directors or the President.

6. <u>Treasurer.</u> The Treasurer shall: (a) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the corporation; (b) receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with these Bylaws; and (c) in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such duties as from time to time be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors.

## **ARTICLE V**

## Indemnification

The corporation shall indemnify and advance expenses to a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation in connection with the proceeding to the fullest extent permitted by in accordance with the Colorado Revised Non-Profit Corporation Act.

## ARTICLE VI

## **Execution of Instruments**

- 1. <u>Execution of Instruments.</u> The President shall have power to execute, on behalf and in the name of the corporation, any deed, contract, bond, debenture, note or other obligations or evidences of indebtedness, or proxy, or other instrument requiring the signature of an officer of the corporation, except where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors to some other officer or agent of the corporation. Unless so authorized, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation in any way, to pledge its credit or to render it liable pecuniary for any purpose or in any amount.
- 2. <u>Checks and Endorsements.</u> All checks and drafts upon the funds to the credit of the corporation in any of its depositories shall be signed by such of its officers or agents as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors which may provide for the use of facsimile signatures under specified conditions, and all notes, bills receivable, trade acceptances, drafts, and other evidences of indebtedness payable to the corporation shall, for the purpose of deposit, discount or collection, be endorsed by such officers or agents of the corporation or in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

### ARTICLE VII

Robert's Rules of Order

All meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee of the Board of Directors shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order.

## **ARTICLE VIII**

## **Corporate Seal**

The corporate seal shall be in such form as shall be approved by resolution of the Board of Directors. Said seal may be used by causing it or a facsimile thereof to be impressed or affixed or reproduced or otherwise. The impression of the seal may be made and attested by either the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary for the authentication of contracts or other papers requiring the seal.

# **ARTICLE IX**

#### Fiscal Year

The corporation's fiscal year shall begin on July 1st and end on June 30th

## **ARTICLE X**

# **Corporate Books and Records**

Except as otherwise required by statute, the books and records of the corporation may be kept within or without the State of Colorado at such place or places as may be from time to time designated by the Board of Directors.

### ARTICLE XI

## **Emergency Bylaws and Amendments**

- 1. <u>Emergency Bylaws.</u> The Board of Directors may adopt emergency bylaws, which shall, notwithstanding any different provision elsewhere, be operative during any emergency resulting from an attack on the United States or any nuclear or atomic disaster and which may make any provision that may be practical and necessary for the circumstances of the emergency.
- 2. <u>Amendments.</u> In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, the bylaws of the corporation shall be subject to alteration, amendment or repeal, and new bylaws may be added, by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the members of the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting.

Dated this 2<sup>nd</sup> day of March, 2015.

FOOTHILLS GATEWAY, INC.

The S. Haley, John Haley, President, Board of Directors

Tracy Katz, Treasurer, Board of Directors

Dorie Milelee	Drego Sulohm
Doris Whitely	Gregg Seebohm
KREC.	BETUR 3I LL
Katie Fahrenbruch, Secretary,	BJ Russell
Board of Directors	Romie Police
Jim Disney, Vice President,	Romie Tobin
Board of Directors	
Swan betheway	Kindra Kffler
Susan Trethewey	Kendra Kettler
Linda Drees	